
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY 

AT LOUISVILLE 

FILED 
VAN!:SSA L. ARMSTRONG 

JUN 2 2 Z016 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

U.j'C:~T'M f'IC,T I(S::I\ITijf'U'{ 
v~ -- ~ 4-a • ...,~...., •• ;, .. _I>J. _,~. 

v. 

MED 1ST OF EVANSVILLE, P.C. 

The Grand Jury charges: 
COUNT1 

INDICTMENT 

NO. 3:1-b·C/2..-7-'- P.T~ 
21 U.S.C. § 846 
21 U.S.C. § 842(a)(l) 
21 U.S.C. § 829 
21 U.S.C. § 853(a)(l) 
21 U.S.C. § 853(a)(2) 
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(7) 
18 u.s.c. § 1349 
18 U.S.C. § 1347 
18 U.S.C. § 1956(h) 
18 U.S.C. § 1957 

(Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud) 

Beginning on or about January 2009, and continuing until at least May 2014, in the 

Western District of Kentucky, Jefferson County, Kentucky, the defendant, MED 1sT OF 

EVANSVILLE, P.C. ("MED 1sT"), did willfully, and knowingly combine, conspire, 

confederate, and agree with other persons, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit a 

federal violation of law, to wit, health care fraud by causing the submission of false claims to 

Medicaid, Medicare, Anthem, and other insurance carriers. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349. 
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The Grand Jury further charges: 
COUNT2 

(Health Care Fraud) 

Beginning on or about January 2009, and continuing until at least May 2014, in the 

Western District of Kentucky, Jefferson County, Kentucky, and elsewhere, the defendant MED 

ST t· OF EVANSVILLE, P.C., knowingly and willfully executed, and attempted to execute, a 

scheme and artifice to obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, and 

promises, money and property o\\-ned by and under the custody and control of health care benefit 

programs, in connection with the delivery ot~ and payment for health care benefits, items, and 

services, to wit: MED 1ST OF EVANSVILLE, P.C. provided and directed other staff members 

to provide medically unnecessary treatments to patients, and to falsely and fraudulently bill 

various health care benetit programs for such services, including Medicare, Medicaid, and 

Anthem, as listed below, among others, by submitting claims for medically unnecessary facet 

block injections, billing for conscious sedation, which was never performed, providing back 

braces, which were not medically necessary, and performing unnecessary tests, including but not 

limited to, the patients listed below: 

DATES OF BENEFICIARY INSURANCE 
SERVICE 

09/12/12 D.A. Kentucky Medicaid 

09113112 L.C. Anthem 

12/27112 A.P. Kentucky Medicaid 

09113/12 B.S. Kentucky Medicaid 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 134 7. 
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The Grand Jury further charges: 

COUNT3 
(Conspiracy to Violate Controlled Substance Act) 

Beginning on or about November 2011, and continuing until at least December 2012, in 

the Western District of Kentucky, Jefferson County, Kentucky, the defendant, MED 1sT OF 

EVANSVILLE, P.C., knowingly and intentionally combined, conspired, confederated and 

agreed with CON SPIRA TOR A, CON SPIRA TOR B, and other persons, known and unknown 

to the Grand Jury, to commit the following offense against the United States: CONSPIRATOR 

A, who was then a medical practitioner and Drug Enforcement Administration registrant, 

subject to the requirements of Title 21, United States Code, Part C, did distribute and dispense 

a controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 829, in that 

CONSPIRATOR A signed blank prescription pads and permitted individuals, acting at the 

direction of CONSPIRATOR B, who were not Drug Enforcement Administration registrants, 

to conduct evaluations of patients and to use these pre-signed prescription pads to 

prescribe medication to the patients, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 

842(a)(1). 

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846. 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

COUNT4 
(Conspiracy to Commit Money Laundering) 

Beginning in or about November 2011, the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury, 

and continuing until at least April 2015, in the Western District of Kentucky, Jefferson County, 

Kentucky, and elsewhere, the defendant, MED 1st OF EVANSVILLE, P.C., knowingly 
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combined conspired and agreed together, and with others, known and unknown to the Grand 

Jury, to commit certain offenses under Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956 and 1957, as 

follows: 

a. to conduct and attempt to conduct financial transactions affecting interstate and 

foreign commerce which involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, 

namely, health care fraud and the unlawful distribution and dispensing of, and 

conspiracy to distribute and dispense, controlled substances and other substances, 

knowing that the property involved in the financial transactions represented the 

proceeds of some form of illegal activity, with the intent to promote the carrying 

on of such specified unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 1956(a)(l)(A)(i); 

b. to conduct and attempt to conduct financial transactions affecting interstate and 

foreign commerce which involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, 

namely, the unlawful distribution and dispensing of, and conspiracy to distribute 

and dispense, controlled substances and other substances, knowing that the 

property involved in the financial transactions represented the proceeds of some 

form of illegal activity and knowing that the transactions were designed in whole 

or in part to conceal and disguise the nature, the location, the source, the 

ownership and the control of the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, m 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(l)(B)(i); and 

c. to knowingly engage, attempt to engage and cause and aid and abet others to 

engage in monetary transactions affecting interstate and foreign commerce in 

criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000.00 and derived from 
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specified unlawful activity, namely, the unlawful distribution and dispensing of, 

and conspiracy to distribute and dispense, controlled substances and other drugs. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(h) and 1957. 

NOTICE OF FORFEITURE 

As a result of committing the offenses set forth in Counts 1 through 4 of this Indictment, 

the defendant, MED 1sT OF EVANSVILLE, P.C., shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7), and Title 21, United States Code, Section 

853(a)(1) and (2), any and all property constituting or derived from any proceeds the defendant 

obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of the these violations, and any and all property used 

or intended to be used in any manner or part to commit and to facilitate the commission of these 

violations, including but not limited to, the Mass Mutual Life Insurance Original Policy Number 

77024911, with Settlement Option Payee Numbers 217165-00; 217165-01; 217165-02; and 

217165-03. 

If any of the above-described forfeitable property, as a result of any act or omission of the 

defendants: 

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person; 

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court; 

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or 

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided 

without difficulty; 
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it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), and 

as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b )(1 ), to seek forfeiture of all the 

defendant's right, title and interest in any other property of the defendant, up to the value of the 

above forfeitable property. 

Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7), and Title 21, United States 

Code, Sections 853(a)(l) and (2). 

A TRUE BILL. 

dattNA CzfibRP 
KUHN, JR. 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

JEK:LJW :20160615 
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